
Town of Gilmanton, New Hampshire 

Gilmanton Planning Board 

Academy Building, 503 Province Road 
PO Box 550 

Gilmanton, New Hampshire 03237 
planning@gilmantonnh.org 

Phone: (603) 267-6700 – Fax: (603) 267-6701  
 

CIP 10/13/2016  Page 1 of 6 

Wayne Ogni, Chair 

Marty Martindale, Vice Chair 

Bill Mahoney, Member 

Roy Buttrick, Member 

John Weston, Member 

Justin Caldon, Member 

Steve McCormack, Alternate 

Steve McWhinnie, Selectmen Rep 

Mike Jean, Alt Selectmen Rep 

Mark Fougere, Certified Planner 

Diane Marden Planning Admin  

MINUTES OF 

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 13, 2016 

ROLL CALL 

The Gilmanton Planning Board met on Thursday, October 13, 2016. Chairman Wayne Ogni 

called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. introduced himself as well as the Board. Members 

Present: Roy Buttrick (arriving at 7:08 p.m.), Bill Mahoney, Vice Chairman, Marty Martindale, 

Alternate, Steve McCormack, T. Justin Caldon, John Weston, and Selectmen’s Representative 

Steve McWhinnie.  Also present was Diane Marden, Planning Administrator and Mark Fougere, 

Certified Planner.  Others present:   John Abbiuso, Joshua Gallagher, Kevin Fraser, Gloria Fraser, 

Terry Morrison, Bill Morrison, Ann Mage, William F. Magee, James McCann Jr., Sean Chen, 

Ethan Anderson, Gary Anderson, Leonard Swanson, Brett Currier, Brenda Currier, Zannah 

Richards, and Gail Ober. 

Minutes of September 8, 2016 

Vice Chair Martindale made the motion to approve the minutes of September 8, 2016 as 
written specifying that the discussion on the amending the zoning ordinance  in these minutes 
were just discussed not approved.  Selectmen’s Representative, Steve McWhinnie seconded the 
motion.  
Motion passes 8-0. 
 
CONCEPTUAL CONSULTATION 

Gary Anderson of Bear Investments, LLC to operate a Vaporizer Electronic Cigarette retail 

business, utilizing office space in Unit #2B at 136 NH Rte. 106, Map 421, Lot 018 in the Business 

Zone. Operating the shop will be Ethan Anderson, the owner’s brother. 

Gary Anderson stated he wanted a Conceptual Consultation with the Planning Board to make 

them aware that his brother Ethan Anderson will be opening a Vaporizer Electronic Cigarette 

retail business named “Straight Clouds Vape” in Unit #2B. Chairman Ogni stated he was glad he 

had come to the board to make them aware of the changes, and asked the Planning Board 

Members if they had any questions for Mr. Anderson. No questions were asked, the Chairman 

thanked Mr. Anderson for coming. 



 

 

(Roy Buttrick enters the meeting at 7:08 p.m.) 

PB Case #403-2016 Brad St. John, LLC 

Chair Ogni called for the representative who was speaking to PB Case #403-2016 – Property 

owners Brad St. John, LLC (Tax Map413, Lot 019): Land Agent John Abbiuso, Manager has 

submitted an application for a Site Plan Review, proposing to change the site plan pertaining to 

4 lots previously sub divided.  Property is located on Province Road in the Rural and Village 

District Zones. 

John Abbiuso, spoke stating he had purchased the land from the former owner who had 

originally sub divided the property with the purpose of putting duplexes on the lots.  Mr. 

Abbiuso explain as the new owner he would like to make all the lots single family lots, and two 

of the lots he would like to move the houses closer to the road, but keeping them within the 35 

ft. setbacks in the Village District. Mr. Abbiuso continued to explain currently a single family 

home is under construction on Lot 3, and he has received a purchase and sales agreement on 

lot 4. Mr. Abbiuso explained due to the cost of running utilities, and the difference in elevations 

being substantial he would like to move the location of the house closer, but still behind the 

tree line, and change the plan to a single family home not a duplex. 

Member Roy Buttrick commented that the plan would need to be amended and then re-

recorded.  Certified Planner, Mark Fougere suggested to Mr. Abbiuso to submit a revised plan 

for the location of the structures, and resubmit to the Planning Board. Vice Chairman, Marty 

Martindale made the motion to table PB Case #403-2016 entitled Brad St. John, LLC until the 

next meeting which will be held on Thursday, November 10, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the upstairs 

meeting room of the Academy Building. 

PB Case #704-2016 Robert F. Dudley and James E. McCann Jr. 

Chairman Ogni asked the representative to come forward to address PB Case #704-2016 – 

Property owners Robert F. Dudley (Tax Map 119 Lot 206 & Tax Map 119 Lot 211; Land Agent 

James E. McCann Jr. have submitted an application for a Lot Line Adjustment proposing to 

change the lot line between parcels. Property(s) located at 9 Walnut Avenue and 4 Sagamore 

Avenue both in the Residential Lake District Zone. 

James E. McCann Jr. addressed the board stating he had put in an application primarily due to 

an improved septic design plan only to find it had fallen upon Mr. Dudley’s property located at 

4 Sagamore  Avenue. Mr. McCann explained he had went over to Mr. Dudley’s explained the 

situation and offered him money to purchase some of the land in order to clean things up a bit 

in that area.  



 

 

(PB Case #704-2016 Robert F. Dudley and James E. McCann Jr. Continued) 

Mr. McCann stated he then filed the Boundary Line Adjustment proposing the changes to the 

Planning Board. Mr. McCann stated therefore, Mr. Dudley signed a letter making me his agent 

in this matter. Mr. McCann stated the ZBA had granted a variance, and are now looking for the 

approval of the Planning Board. 

Vice Chairman, Marty Martindale made the motion to accept PB Case #704-2016 approving the 

boundary line adjustment of the applicants Robert F. Dudley and James E. McCann Jr. The 

following items must be on the “boundary line adjustment plan” prior to finalizing the plan.  A 

survey stamp must be on plan, lot pins must be set and location placed on the plan, placement 

of a note relative to ZBA granting the variance of August 18, 2016, and a revised set of plans 

with an approved Mylar be submitted to planning board. Selectmen’s Representative, Steve 

McWhinnie seconded the motion.  Motion passed 9-0. 

Other Business 

2017 Budget for Planning Board 

Chairman Ogni instructed members of the board to review the Planning Board’s budget 

worksheet to plan for the upcoming 2017 budget year. John Weston recommended decreasing 

line item 01-4191-560 entitled PLB Dues & Subscriptions from $800 to $700. Mark Fougere, 

Certified Planner suggested having Lakes Region Planning Commission complete the Master 

Plan Update. Mr. Fougere stated it just needs an update and should only cost about $15,000.  

Mr. Fougere stated he would contact LR Planning Commission to get the cost of the basic 

update. Chairman Ogni stated he would revisit this line item after Mr. Fougere gets additional 

information about cost. 

Marty Martindale suggested increasing line item 01-4191-620 entitled PLB Office Supplies from 

$50 to $200. Chairman Wayne Ogni would like to create an account 01-4191-320 entitled PLB 

Legal opening the account with $1000.  

Marty Martindale made the motion to approve changes to the budget line items discussed. Roy 

Buttrick seconded the motion. Motion passes 9-0. 

Fee Schedule Update 

Chairman Ogni asked Planning Board Members to review the current fee schedule dated 

12/1/2015. Alternate, Steve McCormack asked what exactly is involved with the Removal Fee 

listed under Business Directional Sign per sign?   

 



 

 

(Fee Schedule Update Discussion Continued) 

Chairman Ogni stated that is the fee to have it removed by the building/code enforcement 

officer. Mr. McCormack suggested calling it a “Non-Compliance Enforcement Removal Fee” to 

clarify what the “Removal Fee” is exactly.  Vice Chair, Marty Martindale also suggested adding a 

“Non-Direction Business Sign Application Fee” for $50. Chairman Ogni agreed and thought 

that the board should also have a Sign Permit Application. Certified Planner, Mark Fougere 

suggested getting one off the Town of Henniker, N.H. website and use that. Chairman Ogni 

agreed. 

Vice Chairman, Marty Martindale made the motion to except the renaming of Removal Fee 

under Business Directional Sign and adding a Non-Business Directional Business Sign 

Application fee in the amount of $50. Roy Buttrick seconded the motion. All members agreed. 

The motion passes 9-0. 

2017 Zoning Recommendations 

Accessory Dwelling Units 

Chairman Ogni asked members to review the packet of recommended Zoning changes for 2017. 

Certified Planner, Mark Fougere handed out two (2) handouts to planning board members. Mr. 

Fougere discussed Accessary Dwelling Units (ADU), and three (3) ways to enforce them. Steve 

McCormack suggested enforcement by using (CUP). Mr. Fougere suggested creating a 

dimension for example if it is as 1500 sqf home, the ADU should be no larger than half of the 

1500 sqf. He continued by saying there must be an interior door connecting the two (2) units, 

and there is other criteria depending on the direction of the board such as it must be owner 

occupied. After much discussion, Mr. Fougere stated he would email Planning Administrator, 

Diane Marden the statutes pertaining to ADU’s. Steve McCormack stated he feels the planning 

board should be as liberal as possible. 

Shooting Range 

Certified Planner, Mark Fougere stated after going through a difficult situation in the Town of 

Hollis, he feels it is necessary to have robust regulations when it comes to Shooting Ranges. 

Steve McCormack stated the Planning Board feels the majority of the issues can come to the 

Planning Board for approval. VC, Marty Martindale stated a lot of the recommendations need 

to be gone over and simplified.  

Evaluator 

Roy Buttrick commented that an accepted evaluator form must be signed prior to approval of a 

septic system. Mr. Buttrick asked what an   ”accepted evaluator” means. 



 

 

(Evaluator Discussion Continued) 

Member Roy Buttrick stated he should be able to sign this form, and he is told he is not good 

enough to sign as I am not an evaluator. Steve McCormack suggested defining “evaluator”.  

Chairman Ogni stated the Land Use Administrator should be calling the Town Planner to 

interpret the definitions. Certified Planner, Mark Fougere handed Brett Currier a copy of the 

2017 Zoning  recommendations. Mr. Currier stated they seemed to be mixed up.  Planning 

Administrator, Diane Marden handed Mr. Currier a copy of the September 8, 2016 PB Minutes, 

so he could understand the recommendations as put forth by the Land Use Administrator who 

had attended this meeting and who had explained the handouts to the board at that time. 

Chairman, Ogni asked Mark Fougere to contact the Land Use Administrator to let her know who 

is able to sign the evaluator form. Mr. Ogni also asked Mr. Fougere to review the 2017 Zoning 

Recommendations as put forth by the Land Use Administrator. Planner, Fougere asked if there 

would be a public hearing. Chairman Ogni stated there would be in December 2016. 

CORRESPONDENCE 

Vice Chairman, Marty Martindale explained that Marshall Bishop was invited to this meeting to 

provide direction as to what the Planning Board was going to require of him to come into 

compliance. Mr. Martindale stated he had a discussion with Attorney Fitzgerald it appears that 

everything is messed up, so we should take history and set it aside, and start over. Mr. Bishop 

has gone to the Zoning Board to get a special exception to allow his restaurant. The special 

exception does not ask him to meet any conditions, so currently he is operating illegally. Mr. 

Martindale stated so under the special exception he can have his restaurant, does not say he 

can open it, or operate it. 

Vice Chairman, Marty Martindale stated what we need is to do a complete site plan application 

to come into compliance, which means a site walk through to make sure it is adequate, making 

sure no food is being prepared on site, or selling liquor in order to bring him into compliance of 

State and Town regulations. 

Chairman, Ogni stated Mr. Bishop was scheduled to be at the meeting, but had told the 

Planning Administrator that he would not be in attendance and took his updated site plan back 

to do more work on it. Member, Justin Caldon asked at what point does life safety come into 

play here. Mr. Martindale stated he has concerns about the septic system and the existing 

system must be monitored, and may require portable toilets. 

Chairman Wayne Ogni recommends sending Mr. Bishop a letter from the Attorney to ask him 

to submit another Site Plan Application along with fees for the November 10th meeting.  



 

 

(Correspondence Continued) 

Planner, Mark Fougere stated that leaves him about two weeks, so the abutters can be notified. 

Vice Chairman, Marty Martindale suggested if he does not come in with an application there 

will be a need to issue a cease and desist.  

Roy Buttrick made the motion to send the letter stating a full site plan application must be 

received or Mr. Bishop will be issued a cease and desist order prior to the date to notify within 

the 14-day period.  Member Bill Mahoney seconds the motion. Motion approved 9-0. 

Adjournment 

Roy Buttrick made the motion to adjourn at 8:45 p.m. Bill Mahoney seconded the motion. 

Motion passes 9-0. 

 

Respectfully Submitted 
Diane Marden, Planning Administrator 
 
Authorized by _________________________  Date:_______________________ 
Wayne Ogni, Chairman 
 


